UNIVERSITY UNA BOARD OF DIRECTORS
NEIGHBOURHOODS Special Meeting

ASSOCIATION Date: January 5, 2021
Time: 10:00 a.m. (via Videoconference)

AGENDA
A. CALL TO ORDER

B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

1. Motion: That the Board approve the January 5, 2021 Special Board Meeting Agenda
as circulated.

C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

None

D. DELEGATIONS

None

E. EXTERNAL REPORTS & PRESENTATIONS

None

F. REPORTS

None

G. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
1. Board Rules of Procedure

Recommendation:

That the Board approve the proposed Board Rules of Procedure included with this
agenda, to take effect when the UNA Bylaws approved at the September 30, 2020
Special General Meeting take effect.

H. NEW BUSINESS

None

. ADJOURNMENT



BOARD RULES OF PROCEDURE

CONTENTS
INTRODUGTION . ...ceeeiiteeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeeaeerereeerarareeeeeeeerereeeeesenesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssnsnsnsnnns 3
D= T Y14 o] o - PP 3
References to bylaws and to SECtiONS aNd PArtS ......ccccueeviieeieeeiiie et e e sre e sre e neees 3
Applicable rules of procedure for Board MeEEtINGS .......coevevuiiieiiiiiieiiieee e e 3
DL eY =T oY o o)V 07 1 @ U R 4
R U] o1 UL TR o Y 1 o =11 SRS 4
PART 2 — BOARD IMEETINGS ...couttiiiiieiitteiiee ettt estte st e sttt e st e stteesateestteesabeesabaesataessbaeesaseesasaesnnsaesnseesnseens 4
o Tor- | H o] s U PSP SO PO P P TP OPOPPUPPPPPTROS 4
Ta YU T (U] =Y I 0 01T o 1 =SS 4
REGUIAI MEEEINGS ...vveiiiiiiee ettt s e s st e e s s b e e s s s bee e s s abeeeesasbeeessnabeeeeenaseaesennsens 4
Yo TTol = I 41T o =TSSR 5
Open, closed, and restricted cloSEd SESSIONS ...cccciiivcciiiiiiee e e e e e e e nrraees 5
(@oT o] iTo [T o A F-] L Y USRS 7
PART 3 — ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION AND ELECTRONIC MEETINGS.......covtirieieieiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenneenenees 7
S Lol e ool o= T ol o F- 14T} o FHu PP 7
ElECEIONIC IMBEEING . ettt ettt et e st e e st e e sbe e s sbteesabaesbbeesabeesabaessaseesabaeenaseas 7
PART 4 — AGENDAS AND ORDER OF BUSINESS. .......cootttiitiiiiiiieieieeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeererereeereeeerererererermes 8
Preparation and availability of ageNdas ...........coiiiiiiiieie e 8
Agenda for open Session Of @ MEETING .....ccuviiiieeee e sae e st eenee e saeeeens 8
Agendas for closed and restricted closed sessions of @a MEeting ......cccvevveciiieeciiiee e, 9
Addition of agenda iteMS DY DIFECLOIS ....ccciiiiiie ettt e rtee e e st e e e e e s e e eneeesaneeens 9
(0o [T oo B < TU R 1 LT T TSR UP PSP 9
NEW DIFECLOIS ..ttt ettt ettt et e e e ettt e e e e e e s e bbb et e e eeesaaanseeteeeeeesaanssebeeeeeeesannnneeaaaeeneas 10
PART 5 — MEETING CHAIR AND QUORUM ....cccctitiiiiiniieiiieesiteeiteesieesiteesibeesieessaaeessbeeesaaeesasaesnsseesasessnnes 10
V=Tl AT o= 2ol o - 11 OO TP UTUPTOTPRTPPR 10
(0 TUToT 0 1 o TSRS 10
Adjourning Mmeeting if NO QUOIUM ......uiiii it e e e e e ebre e e s ebae e e e abeeeeeeanes 10
PART 6 = IMIOTIONS ....coeiiieeieiiieteeeee et ee et eeee et eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e ee e e ee e e eeeeeeeeseeeseseseaeeeessesessssensssesssnsnsnsssnsnsnnnsnsnsnnnnnnns 10
MaKING MOTIONS ..eiiiieiiie ettt ettt e s it e e st e e s bt e e sabeesabaeesateesabeeesabeesabeesseeesabeeenses 10
Vo1 dTeY gt o<1 [ o= a8 do I = o T-1 o F SRS 10
Permissible MOLIONS . ..ciiiie et e te e s be e e st e e sabe e s ate e sabeeenees 11
MOTION £0 CAll thE VOTE c.eiiiiiiee et e e s bee e e s s bee e e s sbee e e e nanes 11

For December 15, 2020 Board Meeting
Adopted _,2020 Page 1 of 19



BOARD RULES OF PROCEDURE

Y/ (o} dTo] 1k o} e To 1y d o To] o 1= IO T T TP PP PPPTUOPPPPPPP 11
1Y Lo d o) a IR do N a=] =] (PRSP PRRRPRRRPPRPIRt 11
1Y/ o] {ToY s T ¥o J=1 0 1=1 0 Lo FR NN 12
Motion to postpone INAEfINILEIY ....ceeeicuieee e e 12
WIthAraWal Of MOTION .cevviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieie ettt ettt et eeeeteee e eaeaeeeeeae e e s s aesesesssesessssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssrnsnnns 12
DTNV R T g o) il 1.4 L0 4 o] o FERR RS PRPRPRRRPRRRPPRPIRt 13
PART 7 — RECONSIDERATION, RESCISSION, OR AMENDMENT OF A MOTION ....cooiiieiiiiiiiee e 13
[4ToleY s Ty e [<] = 1 [0 s I 13
RESCISSION OF AMENUMENT ..uvvvvvviiiiieiititiieieteierererererereaarara—————————————————e—esararerarererererararererersrarrrrrerrrarare. 13
PART 8 — DEBATE AND CONDUCGT ...ceet ittt e et e e et s e et s e e s aas s e e saaa s e s s saasessaasseeeanssaessnnsserens 13
DiSCUSSION PriOr 1O MOTION L.vviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiitieieietet ettt aa et ee et et esaaaesteeasasaeasasesssesaeesssesasnnes 13
[DT=] o F= 1 (IO 14
Vol aTeT g ol ool u'eTo o T-i oYl o= {1 USSR 14
(600] 0T 1V o1 TR 14
Call B0 OFAOI e 15
CONTIICE OF INEEIEST e, 15
Participation of individuals other than Dir€CtOrs ........cceiiiciiie e 15
PART O — POINTS OF ORDER......ctttttttttttititittttetteetueeeresreeeeeeeeaeeeesseseseseseseses.sssssesesesesesee.e........................—.—. 15
[ R I KOV @ I 1N 15
PART 11 — REQUEST FOR INFORMATION . ......utttiiiieeeeeiiiireeeeeeeeeeiitnreeeeeeeeesenterereseeeeessssrssesesesseesssssesesesees 16
PART 12 — DELEGATIONS ..ottt ettt e ettt e et e e et e e e e e b s e e aaa e e s aaasaesaasseessanssessansesssnssanssnnnserens 16
PART 13 = IMIINUTES ...ceteetttittitetittteetettteeeeeeeeeteeee et aeaeseaeeee e s e aeaeae e s asaesaaeaese s e aessessasassssasseseseaesasssssesnsesnsssesssnrnnns 17
Preparation Of MINUEES.......ccuvi ittt e e et e e e eetb e e e e eeabeeeeeareeeeeareeeeennnes 17
Approval, distribution, and retention of MINULES ......c..eevieiiiii e 17
Inclusion of resolutions approved Without MEETLING .......ccceeeeiiiiiiie e 17
PART 14 — UBC AND AMS PARTICIPANTS ...oettittitiiiiiieitteteeeteeeeeeeeseeeeseesereesesessssssssssssessssssssssssrssssrssrrreresa.. 18
PART 15 = COMMITTEES ...coetitttiiiiiiieitiiietttettte ettt ettt et et eeee et e ee e e e ae e e eeaete s e aeeseseesassasasaeaessaesasssssssasasssssnrssnrnens 18
Establishment and membership of COMMITLEES .......cccueveiiiiiiiiecee e e 18
RUIES Of PrOCERAUIE. ... ettt e e e e e e te e e e e bte e e e ebt e e e eebtaeeesabeeeeesnseeeeennnens 18
Lo Y01 Yo} il 4 == T Y= 19
Attendance Of NON-MEMDEI DIrECEOIS .......iviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiitieiie ettt eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeererereereerererrrrrrrrrrrraerar——. 19

For December 15, 2020 Board Meeting
Adopted _,2020 Page 2 of 19



BOARD RULES OF PROCEDURE

INTRODUCTION

Definitions

1.1 Inthese rules of procedure:

“Board” means the UNA Board of Directors;
“Bylaws” means the bylaws of the UNA as amended or replaced from time to time;

“CAQ” means the Chief Administrative Officer of the UNA except that, at any time there is no
CAO, “CAO” means the individual or individuals fulfilling the responsibilities of the CAO position;

“Chair” means the Chair of the Board;

“Director” means a UNA director;

“Point of Order” means a point or query concerning procedure;
“Presiding Director” has the meaning given in section 5.1;
“Rules” means these rules of procedure;

“Societies Act” means the Societies Act, S.B.C. 2015, c. 18, as amended from time to time, and
includes any legislation that replaces that Act;

“UBC” means The University of British Columbia;
“UNA” means the University Neighbourhoods Association.

References to bylaws and to sections and parts
1.2 Areference to a Bylaw followed by a number is to that numbered provision in the Bylaws.

1.3 Areference in square brackets to a numbered Bylaw is to a provision in the Bylaws that requires,
in whole or in part, the section of the Rules in which the reference is included.

1.4  Except as otherwise stated, a reference to a section or Part is to that section or Part of the Rules.

Applicable rules of procedure for Board meetings

1.5 Proceedings of all meetings of the Board are governed by the Rules and, to the extent not
inconsistent with the Rules, by the most recent edition of Robert’s Rules of Order, with such
modifications as are necessary in the circumstances.

For December 15, 2020 Board Meeting
Adopted _,2020 Page 3 of 19



BOARD RULES OF PROCEDURE

1.6 If any rule is inconsistent with the requirements of the Societies Act, the requirements of that Act
prevail.

Delegation by CAO

1.7 The CAO may delegate to other UNA employees any of the responsibilities and functions assigned
to him or her by the Rules.

Substitute for Chair

1.8 If at any time the Chair is absent or unable to act or the office of Chair is vacant, the powers of the
Chair are to be exercised, and the duties carried out, by the Director appointed by the Board for
this purpose.

PART 2 - BOARD MEETINGS

Location

2.1 Board meetings are to take place on the UBC Vancouver campus.

Inaugural meeting

2.2 The CAO must convene an initial meeting of the Board within one month after an election of
Directors.

2.3 At the initial meeting, the Board must elect a Chair in accordance with the following:
(a) The call for nominations for the office of Chair is to be conducted by the CAO.
(b) If only one candidate is nominated, that candidate is to be declared elected by acclamation.
(c) If more than one candidate is nominated, voting is to be conducted by secret ballot.

(d) Ballots are to be counted by the CAO, and the candidate with the most votes is to be declared
elected.

(e) Inthe event that more than one candidate receives the most votes, the CAO is to determine
the procedure for determining which of those candidates is elected. For greater certainty, the
procedure may include determination by lot.

Regular meetings

2.4 The Chair must determine the dates, times, and places of the regular Board meetings, which
meetings must be held at least 6 times in a calendar year. [Bylaw 7.1]

For December 15, 2020 Board Meeting
Adopted _,2020 Page 4 of 19



2.5

2.6

2.7

BOARD RULES OF PROCEDURE

No later than the beginning of a calendar year, the CAO must prepare, in consultation with the
Chair, a schedule of the dates, times, and locations of the regular Board meetings for the year and
must post the schedule of regular Board meetings on the UNA’s website.

A regular Board meeting may

(a) be cancelled by the Board, except that two consecutive regular Board meetings may not be
cancelled; or

(b) moved to a different day, time, or place by the Chair, but only if 5 days’ notice of the change
is provided to the Board.

If a regular Board meeting is cancelled or there is a change to the date, time, or place of the
meeting, the CAO must, as soon as reasonably possible, post a notice of the cancellation or
change on the UNA’s website.

Special meetings

2.8

2.9

A special Board meeting must be called by the CAO at the request of any two Directors.

Except where notice of a special meeting is waived by all Directors, the CAO must give notice of
the date, time, and place of the special meeting at least 48 hours before the time of the meeting

by
(a) sending a copy of the notice to each Director via email, and

(b) posting a copy of the notice on the UNA website.

Open, closed, and restricted closed sessions

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

Each Board meeting consists of one or more of an open session, a closed session, and a restricted
closed session.

The open session of a Board meeting must be open to the public.

The closed session of a Board meeting may be attended only by the Directors, the CAO, UNA
employees invited by the CAO or the Board, and other individuals invited by the Board.

The restricted closed session of a Board meeting may only be attended by the Directors and
individuals invited by the Board.

The Board must hold at least 6 meetings in a calendar year that have an open session.

For December 15, 2020 Board Meeting
Adopted _,2020 Page 5 of 19



BOARD RULES OF PROCEDURE

2.15 A matter may be considered at a closed session or a restricted closed session of a Board meeting
only if the matter is, or relates to, one or more of the following:

(a) discussions and dealings with other entities or individuals where disclosure of the information
being discussed could be harmful to the UNA’s interests;

(b) employee relations and other human resources matters;
(c) a matter which the UNA is required by contract or law to keep confidential;
(d) litigation or potential litigation affecting the UNA;

(e) the receipt of advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including communications
necessary for that purpose;

(f) personal information about an identifiable individual who holds or is being considered for a
position as an officer, employee or agent of the UNA or another position appointed by the
Board;

(g) the appointment of an individual to fill a vacancy on the Board;

(h) the appointment of individuals other than Directors to, or removal from, a committee,
working group, or other body;

(i) the approval of minutes for a closed session or restricted closed session of a Board meeting;

(j) consideration of whether a matter on the agenda for the session is eligible to be considered
in the session;

(k) the addition of a matter to the agenda for the session; and

(I) consideration of whether particular individuals should be permitted to attend the session.

2.16 In the preparation of the agendas for a Board meeting, the Chair is to determine which matters
are to be included on the agenda for the closed session and which matters are to be included on
the agenda for the restricted closed session. The Chair’s determination is subject to being
overturned during the closed session or restricted closed session.

2.17 If a Board meeting includes an open session and also a closed or restricted closed session, the
agenda for the open session is to state

(a) the fact that the open session will be followed by a closed or restricted closed session, and

(b) the basis or bases permitting the consideration of matters in the closed or restricted closed
session.

2.18 If a Board meeting does not include an open session, the CAO must give notice to the public on
the UNA website of the basis or bases permitting the consideration of matters in the meeting.

For December 15, 2020 Board Meeting
Adopted _,2020 Page 6 of 19



BOARD RULES OF PROCEDURE

Confidentiality

2.19 Except as otherwise authorized by the Board,

(a) discussion and decisions made at a closed session or a restricted closed session of a Board
meeting must be kept in confidence; and

(b) information considered during a closed session or a restricted closed session of a Board
meeting must be kept in confidence, until the information is discussed in an open session of a
Board meeting or is released to the public.

PART 3 — ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION AND ELECTRONIC MEETINGS

Electronic Participation

3.1 A Director who is unable to attend a Board meeting in person because of illness, absence from
Metro Vancouver, or other circumstances that prevent the Director from attending in person may
participate in the meeting by electronic facilities if

(a) the facilities enable all meeting participants to hear each other; and

(b) if there is an open session, the facilities enable the public in attendance at the session to hear
the Director.

3.2 A Director who intends to participate in a Board meeting electronically must give the CAO notice
of this intention at least 24 hours prior to the time of the meeting.

3.3 Subject to section 3.4, as soon as reasonably possible after receiving notice from a Director, the
CAO must provide the Director with instructions on how to connect to and participate in the
meeting.

3.4  If more than two Directors intend to participate in a Board meeting electronically, only the first
two Directors who notify the CAO of their intention may so participate.

Electronic Meeting

3.5 A special Board meeting may be conducted by electronic facilities if
(a) either
(i) the meeting is called with less than 72 hours’ notice, or
(ii) atleast three Directors will not be able to attend in person;
(b) the facilities enable all meeting participants to hear, or watch and hear, each other; and

(c) if there is an open session, the facilities enable the public to hear, or watch and hear, the
session.

For December 15, 2020 Board Meeting
Adopted _,2020 Page 7 of 19



BOARD RULES OF PROCEDURE

3.6 The notice of a special Board meeting that includes an open session must provide information on
how the public may hear, or watch and hear, the session, or how the public may obtain this
information.

PART 4 — AGENDAS AND ORDER OF BUSINESS

Preparation and availability of agendas

4.1 Separate agendas are to be prepared for the open session, closed session, and restricted closed
session of a Board meeting.

4.2  The agendas for the open and closed sessions of a regular Board meeting are to be prepared and
made available as follows:

(a) The CAOQ, in consultation with the Chair, must prepare agendas for the open and closed
sessions, setting out all items for consideration at the sessions.

(b) The agendas are to include items proposed by Directors at least 10 days before the meeting.

(c) Atleast5 days before the meeting, the CAO must provide the agendas to the Directors and
make the agenda for the open session available to the public.

4.3  Section 4.2 applies with respect to the agendas for the open and closed sessions of a special
Board meeting, except that the time by which the agendas are to be provided to Directors and
made available to the public is the lesser of 5 days before the meeting and such time as is
reasonably practicable having regard to when the decision to hold the meeting is made.

4.4 Prior to each Board meeting that includes a restricted closed session,

(a) the Director appointed by the Board for this purpose must prepare an agenda for the session;
and

(b) that Director must provide the agenda to Directors at least two days before the meeting.

Agenda for open session of a meeting

4.5 The agenda for the open session of a Board meeting is to contain the following headings in the
order in which they are listed:

(a) Approval of agenda
(b) Approval of minutes
(c) Delegations

(d) External reports and presentations

For December 15, 2020 Board Meeting
Adopted _,2020 Page 8 of 19



BOARD RULES OF PROCEDURE

(e) Reports?
(f) Unfinished business?
(g) New business?

(h) Adjournment

Agendas for closed and restricted closed sessions of a meeting

4.6  The agendas for the closed and restricted closed sessions of a Board meeting are to contain such
of the headings listed in section 4.5 as are applicable.

Addition of agenda items by Directors

4.7 At the time the adoption of an agenda is being considered, a Director may propose to place an
additional item on the agenda. The item is to be added to the agenda only if approved by the
Board.

4.8  After an agenda has been adopted, a Director may propose to place an item of an urgent nature
on the agenda. The item is to be added to the agenda only if the proposal is approved by the
Board.

Order of business

4.9 Business at a session of a Board meeting is to be taken up in the order in which it is listed on the
agenda for that session, unless an alternative order is approved by the Board.

1 “Reports” are UNA reports, such as reports from committees, working groups, Directors, and staff. These may
just provide information or may include recommendations for action.

2 “Unfinished business” consists of
e theitem (if any) that was actually in the process of being considered when the last meeting adjourned;

e items that were on the agenda for the last meeting but were not reached before the adjournment of the
meeting; and

e items from a prior meeting that, by motion, were postponed.
There will usually not be any unfinished business.

3 “New business” is any item for discussion or decision that does not belong under reports or unfinished business.
It includes items that were previously considered by the Board, unless the item has been referred to a committee
or working group.

For December 15, 2020 Board Meeting
Adopted _,2020 Page 9 of 19



BOARD RULES OF PROCEDURE

New Directors
4.10 For the purposes of this Part, a Director includes, in relation to a Board meeting, any person

whose term of office as a UNA director will commence at the beginning of the meeting.

PART 5 - MEETING CHAIR AND QUORUM

Meeting chair

5.1 The chair of a Board meeting (the “Presiding Director”) is to be determined in accordance with
Bylaw 7.6.

5.2 For the purposes of determining the chair of a Board meeting that is not conducted electronically,
a Director who participates electronically in the meeting is deemed not to be present.

Quorum

5.3 The quorum for a Board meeting is a majority of the Directors at the time of the meeting. [Bylaw
7.5]

5.4 The Board must not conduct business at any time at which a quorum is not present.

Adjourning meeting if no quorum

5.5 If there is no quorum present within 15 minutes after the scheduled time for a Board meeting or
such longer time as the majority of the Directors present agree,

(a) the CAO must record the names of the Directors present; and

(b) the meeting stands adjourned.

PART 6 — MOTIONS

Making motions

6.1 Except as otherwise provided in the Rules, a motion must be made and seconded before being
debated or finally put to a vote by the Presiding Director. It is not necessary that the Presiding
Director restate the motion.

6.2 A Director may make a motion only if the Director is recognized by the Presiding Director.

Motions belong to Board

6.3  When a motion has been made and seconded, it is in possession of the Board.

For December 15, 2020 Board Meeting
Adopted _,2020 Page 10 of 19



BOARD RULES OF PROCEDURE

Permissible motions

6.4  Only the following motions may be made when the Board is considering a main motion (i.e., the
motion that initiates formal Board consideration of a matter):

(a) to adjourn;

(b) to recess;

(c) tocall the vote;
(d) to postpone;
(e) torefer;

(f) toamend;

(g) to postpone indefinitely.

6.5 The order of precedence of the motions listed in section 6.4 is from top (highest) to bottom
(lowest). Except for a motion to amend a pending motion, a motion is in order if any motion
below it is pending and is out of order if any motion above it is pending. A motion to amend a
pending motion may be made to any motion that is amendable.

Motion to call the vote
6.6 A motion to call the vote is a motion to end debate and vote immediately on the pending motion.

6.7 A motion to call the vote is not debatable and requires at least two-thirds of the votes cast to be
in favour of the motion in order to succeed.

Motion to postpone

6.8 A motion to postpone a pending main motion must specify when the motion is to be taken up
again, which may be

(a) during the same Board meeting, in which case the motion must specify when in the order of
business, or after which circumstances, the motion is to be considered further; or

(b) in afuture Board meeting, in which case the motion must specify which Board meeting or the
conditions that must be fulfilled in order for the motion to be considered further.

6.9 A motion to postpone is debatable, but only as to the merits of postponement.

Motion to refer

6.10 A motion to refer can be made only with respect to a main motion as amended by any
amendments approved before the motion to refer.

For December 15, 2020 Board Meeting
Adopted _,2020 Page 11 of 19



BOARD RULES OF PROCEDURE

6.11 A motion to refer can be made with respect to a matter on the agenda for the meeting before the
making of a main motion with respect to the matter.

6.12 A motion to refer a matter may be to a committee, working group, or any individual or group of
individuals and is to specify when a report is to be made to the Board.

6.13 Debate on a motion to refer must be limited to the merits of the referral.

Motion to amend
6.14 A motion to amend must not be made with respect to a motion that is non-amendable.

6.15 A motion to amend may take the form of the deletion, addition, or substitution of words. It must
be germane to the motion proposed to be amended and may not change the motion into another
type of motion or negate the intent of the motion.

6.16 A secondary amendment may be moved to a primary amendment. The secondary amendment is
not amendable and no further amendments may be moved to the primary amendment until the
secondary amendment is disposed of.

6.17 A primary amendment must be debated and voted on before the motion that is proposed to be
amended.

6.18 A secondary amendment must be debated and voted on before the pending primary amendment.

Motion to postpone indefinitely

6.19 A motion to postpone indefinitely is a motion not to make a decision on the pending main motion
(i.e., to kill the main motion).

6.20 Debate on a motion to postpone indefinitely may go into the merits of the pending main motion.

Withdrawal of motion

6.21 The Director who made a motion may request at any time while the motion is pending that the
motion be withdrawn.

6.22 A motion is withdrawn if all Directors present at the meeting consent to the request to withdraw.

6.23 If any Director objects to the request to withdraw,
(a) the Presiding Director must put the request to a vote;
(b) no debate is allowed; and

(c) tosucceed, the request requires a majority vote.

For December 15, 2020 Board Meeting
Adopted _,2020 Page 12 of 19



BOARD RULES OF PROCEDURE

Division of motion
6.24 If requested by a Director, where a motion comprises separate parts that can stand alone as

separate motions, there is to be a separate vote on each part.

PART 7 — RECONSIDERATION, RESCISSION, OR AMENDMENT OF A MOTION

Reconsideration

7.1 A Director who voted with the majority for or against a motion (the “original motion”) may make
a motion to reconsider the original motion, either at the same open, closed, or restricted closed
session of the meeting at which the original motion was voted on or at the next such session.

7.2  When a motion to reconsider an original motion is made, the original motion may not be
discussed before approval of the motion to reconsider.

7.3 A motion may not be reconsidered more than once.

7.4 A motion may not be reconsidered if it has been acted upon irreversibly.

Rescission or Amendment

7.5  After the Board has approved a motion (the “approved motion”), a Director may make a motion
to rescind or amend the approved motion, either at the same open, closed, or restricted closed
session of the meeting at which the approved motion was approved or at the next such session.

7.6 A motion to rescind or amend an approved motion requires at least two-thirds of the votes cast to
be in favour of the motion in order to succeed if

(a) the motion to rescind or amend is not made at the same meeting at which the approved
motion was approved, and

(b) advance notice of the intent to make the motion was not given in the agenda for the session
of the meeting at which the motion is made.

7.7  An approved motion may not be rescinded or amended if it has been acted upon irreversibly.

PART 8 — DEBATE AND CONDUCT

Discussion prior to motion

8.1 A matter may be discussed prior to the making of a motion regarding the matter.

For December 15, 2020 Board Meeting
Adopted _,2020 Page 13 of 19



BOARD RULES OF PROCEDURE

Debate
8.2 A Director may speak to a matter only if recognized by the Presiding Director.
8.3  The Presiding Director may speak to any matter.

8.4  Subject to sections 8.5 and 8.6, if more than one Director wishes to speak, the Presiding Director
is to determine the order in accordance with the order in which each Director indicated an
intention to speak.

8.5  The Director who moves a motion may speak first to the motion.

8.6 Each Director must be given an opportunity to speak before a Director is given a further
opportunity to speak.

8.7 A Director must not speak at one time for more than 5 minutes, unless the Board gives permission
for the Director to speak longer.

8.8 A Director may require the motion being debated to be read at any time during the debate, but
not so as to interrupt another Director who is speaking.

Motion to postpone or refer

8.9 If a motion to postpone or refer a main motion is made while there remain Directors who have
indicated an intention to speak, the Presiding Director may refuse to accept the seconding of the
motion to postpone or refer until those on the speakers list have been heard.

Conduct
8.10 A Director may not interrupt a Director who is speaking except to raise a Point of Order.

8.11 Directors must:
(@) use respectful language;

(b) refrain from using rude or offensive gestures or signs or engaging in rude or offensive
conduct;

(c) refrain from attacking or questioning the motives of other Directors;
(d) speak only in connection with the matter being debated; and

(e) adhere to the Rules and to rulings of the Presiding Director and decisions of the Board.

For December 15, 2020 Board Meeting
Adopted _,2020 Page 14 of 19



BOARD RULES OF PROCEDURE

Call to order

8.12 A Director who is called to order by the Presiding Director:
(a) must immediately stop speaking;
(b) may explain their position on the Point of Order; and

(c) may appeal the Presiding Director’s ruling, in which case section 9.2 applies.

Conflict of Interest

8.13 If a Director has a direct or indirect material interest in a matter before the Board, the obligations
in section 56 of the Societies Act (or in any provision that replaces that section) are applicable.

Participation of individuals other than Directors
8.14 Staff and advisors may speak on a matter only if recognized by the Presiding Director.

8.15 Members of the public in attendance at a meeting may speak on a matter if invited to do so by
the Presiding Director.

PART 9 — POINTS OF ORDER

9.1 A Director may raise a Point of Order at any time, whereupon the Presiding Director must:
(a) interrupt the matter currently under consideration;
(b) ask the Director to state the substance of and the basis for the Point of Order; and

(c) decide the matter and state the reasons for the decision.

9.2 A Director who is dissatisfied with a decision of the Presiding Director under section 9.1 may
appeal the decision, in which case

(a) the Director is permitted to state the basis for the appeal;

(b) the Presiding Director may make a response;

(c) the Presiding Director must then ask whether his or her decision is to be sustained;
(d) the question is to be voted on without debate; and

(e) the Presiding Director’s decision is sustained unless there is a majority vote in the negative.

PART 10 - VOTING

10.1 When debate on a motion is closed, the Presiding Director must put the motion to a vote.

For December 15, 2020 Board Meeting
Adopted _,2020 Page 15 of 19



BOARD RULES OF PROCEDURE

10.2 Votes are to be cast by the raising of hands. [Bylaw 7.7]

10.3 When there is a vote on a motion, no Director may leave the room other than a Director who has
declared a conflict of interest.

10.4 Unless provided otherwise in the Rules, a motion is decided in the affirmative if a majority of the
Directors present, excluding those who abstain from voting, vote in the affirmative. [Bylaw 7.7]

10.5 Inthe event of an equality of votes, the Presiding Director has a second vote. [Bylaw 7.7]
10.6 The Presiding Director must declare the result of a vote by stating that the motion is decided in

either the affirmative or the negative.

PART 11 — REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

11.1 Directors have the right to request information about any matter before the Board or related to
the UNA’s affairs.

11.2 A Director’s inquiry is to be addressed to the Presiding Director.
11.3 Inquiries must not include opinion or argument.

11.4 Aninquiry that is not asked in connection with debate on a matter may only be raised as an item
under new business.

11.5 If an inquiry cannot be answered when asked, the CAO must respond, or have someone else

respond, at the next regular Board meeting.

PART 12 - DELEGATIONS

12.1 During the open session of a regular Board meeting, an individual or group of individuals (a
“Delegation”) may make a presentation to the Board.

12.2 The maximum amount of time for hearing from Delegations at a Board meeting is 30 minutes.

12.3 Delegations are to be heard in the order in which they notify the CAO of their intention to make a
presentation to the Board, unless the Board decides otherwise.

12.4 A Delegation’s presentation is limited to 10 minutes.

12.5 Directors may ask clarification questions of a Delegation, and hear responses to those questions,
for a maximum of 5 minutes.

12.6 Any time limit in this Part may be extended with the consent of the Board.

For December 15, 2020 Board Meeting
Adopted _,2020 Page 16 of 19



BOARD RULES OF PROCEDURE

PART 13 - MINUTES

Preparation of minutes

13.1 Separate minutes are to be prepared for the open, closed and restricted closed sessions of a
Board meeting.

13.2 Minutes of an open, closed, or restricted closed session of a Board meeting must contain:
(a) the type of session;
(b) the date and location of the meeting;
(c) the times at which the session began and adjourned;
(d) the names of Directors, staff, and invited attendees who attended the session;
(e) the name of the Presiding Director;
(f) arecord of decisions made on all main motions; and

(g) the names of any Directors who have declared conflicts of interest and the matter with
respect to which each conflict was declared.

13.3 The minutes of restricted closed sessions are to be prepared by a Director appointed by the Board
for that purpose.

Approval, distribution, and retention of minutes

13.4 A draft of the minutes of an open, closed, or restricted closed session of a Board meeting must be
provided to Directors for approval and included with the agenda for the next session of that type.

13.5 Within 14 days of the Board approving the minutes of an open session of a Board meeting, the
CAO must post the minutes on the UNA website.

13.6 The approved minutes of the closed session of a Board meeting are to be maintained
confidentially by the CAO.

13.7 The approved minutes of a restricted closed session of a Board meeting are to be distributed to all
Directors, who must maintain the confidentially of the minutes.

Inclusion of resolutions approved without meeting

13.8 A resolution approved in accordance with Bylaw 7.9 (resolution approved without meeting) must
be included with the minutes of the next open, closed, or restricted closed meeting of the Board,
depending on the type of session at which the resolution would otherwise have been presented
for approval.

For December 15, 2020 Board Meeting
Adopted _,2020 Page 17 of 19



BOARD RULES OF PROCEDURE

PART 14 - UBC AND AMS PARTICIPANTS

14.1 With respect to an individual appointed by UBC who is entitled pursuant to sections 8.1 to 8.5 of
the Bylaws to attend and participate in Board meetings, the Rules apply as if the individual were a
Director, except that

(a) the individual has no right to make motions;

(b) the individual has no right to vote on any matter, including for greater certainty any
procedural matter; and

(c) tothe extent that sections 8.1 to 8.5 of the Bylaws are inconsistent with the Rules, those
sections prevail.

14.2  With respect to an individual appointed by the Alma Mater Society of the University of British
Columbia who is entitled pursuant to section 4.6 of the Neighbours’ Agreement 2020 to attend
and participate in Board meetings, the Rules apply as if the individual were a Director, except that

(a) the individual has no right to vote on any matter, including for greater certainty any
procedural matter; and

(b) to the extent that section 4.6 of the Neighbours’ Agreement 2020 is inconsistent with the
Rules, that section prevails.

PART 15 - COMMITTEES

Establishment and membership of committees

15.1 Subject to any delegation of its power to establish committees, only the Board may establish
committees and determine their membership.

15.2 Individuals who are not Directors may be members of a committee.
15.3 The chair of each committee must be a Director.

15.4 A Director who is a member of a committee ceases to be a member upon ceasing to be a Director
unless otherwise provided in the appointment of the Director to the committee.

Rules of procedure

15.5 Board committees are to conduct business in accordance with the Rules, with such modifications
as are necessary.

15.6 The quorum for a committee meeting is a majority of the committee’s members.

15.7 A motion made at a committee meeting is not required to be seconded.

For December 15, 2020 Board Meeting
Adopted _,2020 Page 18 of 19



BOARD RULES OF PROCEDURE

15.8 In the event of an equality of votes on a motion at a committee meeting,
(a) the chair of the committee does not have a second vote; and

(b) the motion fails.

Minutes of meetings

15.9 The committee must provide minutes of its meetings to the Board.

Attendance of non-member Directors

15.10 Directors who are not members of a committee
(a) may attend committee meetings,

(b) may participate in discussion only with the approval of a majority of the committee members
present, and

(c) have no vote.
Priority of committee terms of reference

15.11 The provisions in this Part are not applicable with respect to a committee to the extent that the
provisions conflict with the committee’s terms of reference.

For December 15, 2020 Board Meeting
Adopted _,2020 Page 19 of 19



BOARD PROCEDURES POLICY

The Board of Directors of the University Neighbourhoods Association enacts as follows:

PART 1 - INTERPRETATION

Purpose

1. The purpose of this Policy is to assist the Directors in the conduct and facilitation of their Board
meetings and to permit the orderly and democratic transaction of business.

Scope

2. This Policy applies to the Board of the Association.
Definitions

3. In this Policy:

“Association” means the University Neighbourhoods Association;
“Board” means the Directors of the Association;
“Chair” means the Chair of the Board;
“Director” means a director of the Association;
“Secretary” means the Secretary of the Association;
“UBC” means The University of British Columbia.
Application of rules of procedure for meetings of the Board
4, The provisions of this Policy govern the proceedings of meetings of the Board.
5. The proceedings at Board meetings are governed by Robert’s Rules of Order or any other rules of

procedure that the Board determines by resolution from time to time. In the event of a conflict
between this Policy and Robert’s Rules of Order, this Policy governs.



BOARD PROCEDURES POLICY

PART 2 — SCHEDULE AND NOTICE OF MEETINGS

Time and location of meetings of the Board

6. All meetings of the Board must take place within Electoral Area “A” of the Greater Vancouver
Regional District.

7. Regular meetings of the Board must be held at least 6 times per year at a date and time to be
determined by the Board.

8. Special meetings of the Board may be called by:
(a) a resolution of the Board;
(b) any Director, with the consent of the Board Chair; or
(©) the Board Chair.
9. The Board may cancel any meeting of the Board by resolution.
Notice of regular meetings of the Board

10. The Executive Director will post the date, time and place of regular meetings of the Board on the
UNA website at least 7 days before each regular meeting.

11. The Executive Director in consultation with the Chair shall prepare a board package consisting of
an agenda and any related documents and distribute it to all Board members a week prior to the
Board meeting.

Notice of special meetings of the Board

12. Except where notice of a special meeting is waived by unanimous vote of all Directors, the
Executive Director will provide notice of the special meeting setting out the date, hour, and place
of the special meeting of the Board at least 4 business days before the special meeting by posting
a copy of the notice on the UNA website and sending a copy of the notice to each Director via
email.



BOARD PROCEDURES POLICY

PART 3 — AGENDA

Agenda of Regular Board Meetings

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

One week prior to each regular meeting of the Board, the Executive Director in consultation with
the Chair shall prepare an agenda setting out the items for consideration at the upcoming
meeting.

The deadline for submissions by the Directors to the Executive Director of items for inclusion on
the provisional agenda of a regular Board meeting is 7 days before the Friday prior to the meeting.

The Executive Director shall circulate the draft agenda by email one week prior to the meeting to
all Directors.

If a portion of the agenda includes items required by this Policy to be considered in closed session,
the Executive Director must ensure that the agenda items for the closed portion of the agenda
are not posted to the UNA website.

The agenda for all regular meetings of the Board shall contain the following matters in the order
in which they are listed below:

(a) Call to order;

(b) Approval of agenda;

(©) Presentation by delegations;

(d) Approval of minutes;

(e) Matters arising from the Minutes;
® Reports;

(2) Question period;

(h) Unfinished business;

(1) New business; and

() Adjournment.



BOARD PROCEDURES POLICY

18. Business at a regular meeting of the Board shall be taken up in the order in which it is listed on
the agenda unless otherwise changed by a resolution of the Board.

19. An item of business not included on the agenda shall not be considered at the regular meeting of
the Board unless the agenda is amended by resolution to include that item.

Agenda of Special Board Meetings

20. The agenda for a special meeting of the Board will be determined by the Chair in accordance with
the reason for calling a special meeting.

21. If a portion of the agenda for a special meeting includes items required by this Policy to be

considered in closed session, the Executive Director must ensure that the agenda items for the
closed portion of the agenda are not posted to the UNA website.

PART 4 — MEETING PROCEEDINGS

Quorum
22. Quorum for a meeting of the Board is a majority of the Directors holding office at the time of the
meeting.

Loss of quorum
23. The Board may not conduct business without a quorum present.
Adjourning Board meeting where no quorum

24, If there is no quorum present within 30 minutes after the scheduled time for a meeting of the
Board, the Executive Director must:

(a) record the names of the members present, and those absent; and
(b) adjourn the meeting until the next scheduled meeting.
Conduct and debate at the Board
25. A Director may speak to a question or motion if the Director is recognized by the Chair.

26. No Director may interrupt a Director who is speaking except to raise a point of order.



27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

BOARD PROCEDURES POLICY

If more than one Director wishes to speak to a question or motion, the Chair must determine the
order in accordance with a speakers list.

Directors who are called to order by the Chair:

(a) must immediately stop speaking;
(b) may explain their position on a point of order with the leave of the Chair; and
(©) may appeal to the Board for its decision on a point of order.

Directors speaking at a meeting:

(a) must use respectful language;
(b) must not use offensive gestures or signs; and
(c) must adhere to the rules of procedure established under this Policy and to the

decisions of the Chair in connection with the rules and points of order.

A Director may require the question being debated to be read at any time during the debate if
that does not interrupt another Director who is speaking.

The Chair may apply the following rules to limit speech on matters being considered at a meeting
of the Board:

(a) a Director may only speak more than twice in connection with the same question
with the permission of the Chair; and

(b) a Director may speak to a question, or may speak in reply, for no longer than a
total time of 10 minutes unless the permission of the Chair has been granted to
speak longer.

Recusal of Directors

32.

If a Director has a direct or indirect material interest in a matter before the Board, the Director
must:

(a) Disclose fully and promptly the conflict of interest; and

(b) Recuse him or herself from the discussion of the matter, including the vote, and
leave the room.



BOARD PROCEDURES POLICY

Participation of Staff and Advisors at the Board

33.

Staff and advisors may speak to a question or motion if the staff member or advisor is recognized
by the Chair.

Voting at meetings

34. When debate on a matter is closed, the Chair must put the matter to a vote.

35. When a vote on a matter is taken, each Director present shall signify their vote by raising their
hand.

36. When the Chair is putting the matter to a vote a Director must not leave the room.

37. The Chair must declare the result of the vote by stating that the matter is decided in either the
affirmative or the negative.

38. Avote is determined, unless noted otherwise, by a simple majority of those Directors both present
and voting.

Delegations

39. A delegation may consist of one or more individuals.

40. The Board may allow a delegation to address the Board, provided that advance permission is
sought from the Executive Director prior to the publication of the agenda.

41. If advance permission has not been sought, a delegation may address the Board if approved by a
resolution the Directors.

42. Directors are not required to take up an issue raised by a delegation, and there is no requirement
for debate.

43. Delegations are limited to 10 minutes per presentation unless additional time is approved by

resolution of the Directors.

Closed Board meetings

44,

45.

46.

Except as required by this Policy, all meetings of the Board shall be open to the public.

Closed sessions of the Board may only be attended by the Directors, the Executive Director, and
those individuals invited to attend by the Board.

The following business shall be conducted in a closed session of the Board:



47.

48.

49.

50.

BOARD PROCEDURES POLICY

(a) discussions and dealings with other entities or persons where disclosure of the
information being discussed may compromise the relationship of the Association
with them or its relationship with its stakeholders;

(b) labour relations or human resources issues;

() matters for which disclosure could be harmful to the interests of the Association;
(d) matters which the Association is required by contract or law to keep confidential;
(e) matters related to legal advice and proceedings;

63) personal information of an individual;

(2) approval of minutes, or any portion of minutes, that contain information from a

closed session of the Board; and

(h) any other business that, by resolution of the Directors, the Board determines
should be considered in a closed session of the Board.

The Board Chair will determine whether a meeting, or part of a meeting, is to be conducted at a
closed session prior to publication of the agenda where possible.

Before holding a meeting, or part of a meeting, that is to be closed to the public, the Chair must
state:

(a) that the meeting, or part of the meeting, is to be closed; and
(b) the basis on which the meeting, or part of the meeting, is to be closed.

Board discussions during closed sessions are confidential. All Directors and permitted attendees
must keep in confidence information considered in any part of a closed session.

The Board shall hold an in camera meeting at the end of each Board meeting. In camera meetings
are attended by directors only. The same rules regarding sharing information and confidentiality
that apply to closed meetings apply to in camera meetings.

PART 5 - MINUTES

51.

Minutes of Board meetings must be:



52.

53.

54.

55.

56.

BOARD PROCEDURES POLICY

(a) legibly recorded;

(b) issued in draft and provided to the directors in advance of the next meeting. Once
amended they shall be included in the Board package provided to Directors and
posted to the website; and

(©) signed by the Chair after the minutes are adopted by the Board.
Minutes of Board meetings must contain:

(a) A header that includes the time, date, and place of the meeting;
(b) The names of Directors, staff, and invited attendees who attended the meeting;

(c) A separate paragraph for each motion or item arising during the meeting and the
determination of each motion or item; and

(d) The hour of adjournment.

If a Director declares a conflict of interest, the declaration must be recorded in the minutes of the
meeting.

Within 14 days of the Board adopting minutes, the Executive Director shall post the minutes on
the UNA website, except for closed session minutes.

A separate set of minutes shall be maintained for any portion(s) of a Board meeting that are held
in closed session. Closed session minutes shall be maintained confidentially by the Executive
Director.

The directors shall maintain a separate set of minutes from the in camera portion of the meeting.
They shall be maintained confidentially by the Board.



	Agenda
	A. CALL TO ORDER
	B. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
	C. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	D. DELEGATIONS
	E. EXTERNAL REPORTS & PRESENTATIONS
	F. REPORTS
	G. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	H. NEW BUSINESS
	I. ADJOURNMENT

	F.3.a. Board Rules of Procedure - Final for Board Approval
	INTRODUCTION
	Definitions
	1.1 In these rules of procedure:

	References to bylaws and to sections and parts
	1.2 A reference to a Bylaw followed by a number is to that numbered provision in the Bylaws.
	1.3 A reference in square brackets to a numbered Bylaw is to a provision in the Bylaws that requires, in whole or in part, the section of the Rules in which the reference is included.
	1.4 Except as otherwise stated, a reference to a section or Part is to that section or Part of the Rules.

	Applicable rules of procedure for Board meetings
	1.5 Proceedings of all meetings of the Board are governed by the Rules and, to the extent not inconsistent with the Rules, by the most recent edition of Robert’s Rules of Order, with such modifications as are necessary in the circumstances.
	1.6 If any rule is inconsistent with the requirements of the Societies Act, the requirements of that Act prevail.

	Delegation by CAO
	1.7 The CAO may delegate to other UNA employees any of the responsibilities and functions assigned to him or her by the Rules.

	Substitute for Chair
	1.8 If at any time the Chair is absent or unable to act or the office of Chair is vacant, the powers of the Chair are to be exercised, and the duties carried out, by the Director appointed by the Board for this purpose.


	PART 2 –  BOARD MEETINGS
	Location
	2.1 Board meetings are to take place on the UBC Vancouver campus.

	Inaugural meeting
	2.2 The CAO must convene an initial meeting of the Board within one month after an election of Directors.
	2.3 At the initial meeting, the Board must elect a Chair in accordance with the following:
	(a) The call for nominations for the office of Chair is to be conducted by the CAO.
	(b) If only one candidate is nominated, that candidate is to be declared elected by acclamation.
	(c) If more than one candidate is nominated, voting is to be conducted by secret ballot.
	(d) Ballots are to be counted by the CAO, and the candidate with the most votes is to be declared elected.
	(e) In the event that more than one candidate receives the most votes, the CAO is to determine the procedure for determining which of those candidates is elected. For greater certainty, the procedure may include determination by lot.


	Regular meetings
	2.4 The Chair must determine the dates, times, and places of the regular Board meetings, which meetings must be held at least 6 times in a calendar year. [Bylaw 7.1]
	2.5 No later than the beginning of a calendar year, the CAO must prepare, in consultation with the Chair, a schedule of the dates, times, and locations of the regular Board meetings for the year and must post the schedule of regular Board meetings on ...
	2.6 A regular Board meeting may
	(a) be cancelled by the Board, except that two consecutive regular Board meetings may not be cancelled; or
	(b) moved to a different day, time, or place by the Chair, but only if 5 days’ notice of the change is provided to the Board.

	2.7 If a regular Board meeting is cancelled or there is a change to the date, time, or place of the meeting, the CAO must, as soon as reasonably possible, post a notice of the cancellation or change on the UNA’s website.

	Special meetings
	2.8 A special Board meeting must be called by the CAO at the request of any two Directors.
	2.9 Except where notice of a special meeting is waived by all Directors, the CAO must give notice of the date, time, and place of the special meeting at least 48 hours before the time of the meeting by
	(a) sending a copy of the notice to each Director via email, and
	(b) posting a copy of the notice on the UNA website.


	Open, closed, and restricted closed sessions
	2.10 Each Board meeting consists of one or more of an open session, a closed session, and a restricted closed session.
	2.11 The open session of a Board meeting must be open to the public.
	2.12 The closed session of a Board meeting may be attended only by the Directors, the CAO, UNA employees invited by the CAO or the Board, and other individuals invited by the Board.
	2.13 The restricted closed session of a Board meeting may only be attended by the Directors and individuals invited by the Board.
	2.14 The Board must hold at least 6 meetings in a calendar year that have an open session.
	2.15 A matter may be considered at a closed session or a restricted closed session of a Board meeting only if the matter is, or relates to, one or more of the following:
	(a) discussions and dealings with other entities or individuals where disclosure of the information being discussed could be harmful to the UNA’s interests;
	(b) employee relations and other human resources matters;
	(c) a matter which the UNA is required by contract or law to keep confidential;
	(d) litigation or potential litigation affecting the UNA;
	(e) the receipt of advice that is subject to solicitor-client privilege, including communications necessary for that purpose;
	(f) personal information about an identifiable individual who holds or is being considered for a position as an officer, employee or agent of the UNA or another position appointed by the Board;
	(g) the appointment of an individual to fill a vacancy on the Board;
	(h) the appointment of individuals other than Directors to, or removal from, a committee, working group, or other body;
	(i) the approval of minutes for a closed session or restricted closed session of a Board meeting;
	(j) consideration of whether a matter on the agenda for the session is eligible to be considered in the session;
	(k) the addition of a matter to the agenda for the session; and
	(l) consideration of whether particular individuals should be permitted to attend the session.

	2.16 In the preparation of the agendas for a Board meeting, the Chair is to determine which matters are to be included on the agenda for the closed session and which matters are to be included on the agenda for the restricted closed session. The Chair...
	2.17 If a Board meeting includes an open session and also a closed or restricted closed session, the agenda for the open session is to state
	(a) the fact that the open session will be followed by a closed or restricted closed session, and
	(b) the basis or bases permitting the consideration of matters in the closed or restricted closed session.

	2.18 If a Board meeting does not include an open session, the CAO must give notice to the public on the UNA website of the basis or bases permitting the consideration of matters in the meeting.

	Confidentiality
	2.19 Except as otherwise authorized by the Board,
	(a) discussion and decisions made at a closed session or a restricted closed session of a Board meeting must be kept in confidence; and
	(b) information considered during a closed session or a restricted closed session of a Board meeting must be kept in confidence, until the information is discussed in an open session of a Board meeting or is released to the public.



	PART 3 –  ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION AND ELECTRONIC MEETINGS
	Electronic Participation
	3.1 A Director who is unable to attend a Board meeting in person because of illness, absence from Metro Vancouver, or other circumstances that prevent the Director from attending in person may participate in the meeting by electronic facilities if
	(a) the facilities enable all meeting participants to hear each other; and
	(b) if there is an open session, the facilities enable the public in attendance at the session to hear the Director.

	3.2 A Director who intends to participate in a Board meeting electronically must give the CAO notice of this intention at least 24 hours prior to the time of the meeting.
	3.3 Subject to section 3.4, as soon as reasonably possible after receiving notice from a Director, the CAO must provide the Director with instructions on how to connect to and participate in the meeting.
	3.4 If more than two Directors intend to participate in a Board meeting electronically, only the first two Directors who notify the CAO of their intention may so participate.

	Electronic Meeting
	3.5 A special Board meeting may be conducted by electronic facilities if
	(a) either
	(b) the facilities enable all meeting participants to hear, or watch and hear, each other; and
	(c) if there is an open session, the facilities enable the public to hear, or watch and hear, the session.

	3.6 The notice of a special Board meeting that includes an open session must provide information on how the public may hear, or watch and hear, the session, or how the public may obtain this information.


	PART 4 –  AGENDAS AND ORDER OF BUSINESS
	Preparation and availability of agendas
	4.1 Separate agendas are to be prepared for the open session, closed session, and restricted closed session of a Board meeting.
	4.2 The agendas for the open and closed sessions of a regular Board meeting are to be prepared and made available as follows:
	(a) The CAO, in consultation with the Chair, must prepare agendas for the open and closed sessions, setting out all items for consideration at the sessions.
	(b) The agendas are to include items proposed by Directors at least 10 days before the meeting.
	(c) At least 5 days before the meeting, the CAO must provide the agendas to the Directors and make the agenda for the open session available to the public.

	4.3 Section 4.2 applies with respect to the agendas for the open and closed sessions of a special Board meeting, except that the time by which the agendas are to be provided to Directors and made available to the public is the lesser of 5 days before ...
	4.4 Prior to each Board meeting that includes a restricted closed session,
	(a) the Director appointed by the Board for this purpose must prepare an agenda for the session; and
	(b) that Director must provide the agenda to Directors at least two days before the meeting.


	Agenda for open session of a meeting
	4.5 The agenda for the open session of a Board meeting is to contain the following headings in the order in which they are listed:
	(a) Approval of agenda
	(b) Approval of minutes
	(c) Delegations
	(d) External reports and presentations
	(e) Reports0F
	(f) Unfinished business1F
	(g) New business2F
	(h) Adjournment


	Agendas for closed and restricted closed sessions of a meeting
	4.6 The agendas for the closed and restricted closed sessions of a Board meeting are to contain such of the headings listed in section 4.5 as are applicable.

	Addition of agenda items by Directors
	4.7 At the time the adoption of an agenda is being considered, a Director may propose to place an additional item on the agenda. The item is to be added to the agenda only if approved by the Board.
	4.8 After an agenda has been adopted, a Director may propose to place an item of an urgent nature on the agenda. The item is to be added to the agenda only if the proposal is approved by the Board.

	Order of business
	4.9 Business at a session of a Board meeting is to be taken up in the order in which it is listed on the agenda for that session, unless an alternative order is approved by the Board.

	New Directors
	4.10 For the purposes of this Part, a Director includes, in relation to a Board meeting, any person whose term of office as a UNA director will commence at the beginning of the meeting.


	PART 5 –  MEETING CHAIR AND QUORUM
	Meeting chair
	5.1 The chair of a Board meeting (the “Presiding Director”) is to be determined in accordance with Bylaw 7.6.
	5.2 For the purposes of determining the chair of a Board meeting that is not conducted electronically, a Director who participates electronically in the meeting is deemed not to be present.

	Quorum
	5.3 The quorum for a Board meeting is a majority of the Directors at the time of the meeting. [Bylaw 7.5]
	5.4 The Board must not conduct business at any time at which a quorum is not present.

	Adjourning meeting if no quorum
	5.5 If there is no quorum present within 15 minutes after the scheduled time for a Board meeting or such longer time as the majority of the Directors present agree,
	(a) the CAO must record the names of the Directors present; and
	(b) the meeting stands adjourned.



	PART 6 –  MOTIONS
	Making motions
	6.1 Except as otherwise provided in the Rules, a motion must be made and seconded before being debated or finally put to a vote by the Presiding Director. It is not necessary that the Presiding Director restate the motion.
	6.2 A Director may make a motion only if the Director is recognized by the Presiding Director.

	Motions belong to Board
	6.3 When a motion has been made and seconded, it is in possession of the Board.

	Permissible motions
	6.4 Only the following motions may be made when the Board is considering a main motion (i.e., the motion that initiates formal Board consideration of a matter):
	(a) to adjourn;
	(b) to recess;
	(c) to call the vote;
	(d) to postpone;
	(e) to refer;
	(f) to amend;
	(g) to postpone indefinitely.

	6.5 The order of precedence of the motions listed in section 6.4 is from top (highest) to bottom (lowest). Except for a motion to amend a pending motion, a motion is in order if any motion below it is pending and is out of order if any motion above it...

	Motion to call the vote
	6.6 A motion to call the vote is a motion to end debate and vote immediately on the pending motion.
	6.7 A motion to call the vote is not debatable and requires at least two-thirds of the votes cast to be in favour of the motion in order to succeed.

	Motion to postpone
	6.8 A motion to postpone a pending main motion must specify when the motion is to be taken up again, which may be
	(a) during the same Board meeting, in which case the motion must specify when in the order of business, or after which circumstances, the motion is to be considered further; or
	(b) in a future Board meeting, in which case the motion must specify which Board meeting or the conditions that must be fulfilled in order for the motion to be considered further.

	6.9 A motion to postpone is debatable, but only as to the merits of postponement.

	Motion to refer
	6.10 A motion to refer can be made only with respect to a main motion as amended by any amendments approved before the motion to refer.
	6.11 A motion to refer can be made with respect to a matter on the agenda for the meeting before the making of a main motion with respect to the matter.
	6.12 A motion to refer a matter may be to a committee, working group, or any individual or group of individuals and is to specify when a report is to be made to the Board.
	6.13  Debate on a motion to refer must be limited to the merits of the referral.

	Motion to amend
	6.14 A motion to amend must not be made with respect to a motion that is non-amendable.
	6.15 A motion to amend may take the form of the deletion, addition, or substitution of words. It must be germane to the motion proposed to be amended and may not change the motion into another type of motion or negate the intent of the motion.
	6.16 A secondary amendment may be moved to a primary amendment. The secondary amendment is not amendable and no further amendments may be moved to the primary amendment until the secondary amendment is disposed of.
	6.17 A primary amendment must be debated and voted on before the motion that is proposed to be amended.
	6.18 A secondary amendment must be debated and voted on before the pending primary amendment.

	Motion to postpone indefinitely
	6.19 A motion to postpone indefinitely is a motion not to make a decision on the pending main motion (i.e., to kill the main motion).
	6.20 Debate on a motion to postpone indefinitely may go into the merits of the pending main motion.

	Withdrawal of motion
	6.21 The Director who made a motion may request at any time while the motion is pending that the motion be withdrawn.
	6.22 A motion is withdrawn if all Directors present at the meeting consent to the request to withdraw.
	6.23 If any Director objects to the request to withdraw,
	(a) the Presiding Director must put the request to a vote;
	(b) no debate is allowed; and
	(c) to succeed, the request requires a majority vote.


	Division of motion
	6.24 If requested by a Director, where a motion comprises separate parts that can stand alone as separate motions, there is to be a separate vote on each part.


	PART 7 –   RECONSIDERATION, RESCISSION, OR AMENDMENT OF A MOTION
	Reconsideration
	7.1 A Director who voted with the majority for or against a motion (the “original motion”) may make a motion to reconsider the original motion, either at the same open, closed, or restricted closed session of the meeting at which the original motion w...
	7.2 When a motion to reconsider an original motion is made, the original motion may not be discussed before approval of the motion to reconsider.
	7.3 A motion may not be reconsidered more than once.
	7.4 A motion may not be reconsidered if it has been acted upon irreversibly.

	Rescission or Amendment
	7.5 After the Board has approved a motion (the “approved motion”), a Director may make a motion to rescind or amend the approved motion, either at the same open, closed, or restricted closed session of the meeting at which the approved motion was appr...
	7.6 A motion to rescind or amend an approved motion requires at least two-thirds of the votes cast to be in favour of the motion in order to succeed if
	(a) the motion to rescind or amend is not made at the same meeting at which the approved motion was approved, and
	(b) advance notice of the intent to make the motion was not given in the agenda for the session of the meeting at which the motion is made.

	7.7 An approved motion may not be rescinded or amended if it has been acted upon irreversibly.


	PART 8 –  DEBATE AND CONDUCT
	Discussion prior to motion
	8.1 A matter may be discussed prior to the making of a motion regarding the matter.

	Debate
	8.2 A Director may speak to a matter only if recognized by the Presiding Director.
	8.3 The Presiding Director may speak to any matter.
	8.4 Subject to sections 8.5 and 8.6, if more than one Director wishes to speak, the Presiding Director is to determine the order in accordance with the order in which each Director indicated an intention to speak.
	8.5 The Director who moves a motion may speak first to the motion.
	8.6 Each Director must be given an opportunity to speak before a Director is given a further opportunity to speak.
	8.7 A Director must not speak at one time for more than 5 minutes, unless the Board gives permission for the Director to speak longer.
	8.8 A Director may require the motion being debated to be read at any time during the debate, but not so as to interrupt another Director who is speaking.

	Motion to postpone or refer
	8.9 If a motion to postpone or refer a main motion is made while there remain Directors who have indicated an intention to speak, the Presiding Director may refuse to accept the seconding of the motion to postpone or refer until those on the speakers ...

	Conduct
	8.10 A Director may not interrupt a Director who is speaking except to raise a Point of Order.
	8.11 Directors must:
	(a) use respectful language;
	(b) refrain from using rude or offensive gestures or signs or engaging in rude or offensive conduct;
	(c) refrain from attacking or questioning the motives of other Directors;
	(d) speak only in connection with the matter being debated; and
	(e) adhere to the Rules and to rulings of the Presiding Director and decisions of the Board.


	Call to order
	8.12 A Director who is called to order by the Presiding Director:
	(a) must immediately stop speaking;
	(b) may explain their position on the Point of Order; and
	(c) may appeal the Presiding Director’s ruling, in which case section 9.2 applies.


	Conflict of Interest
	8.13 If a Director has a direct or indirect material interest in a matter before the Board, the obligations in section 56 of the Societies Act (or in any provision that replaces that section) are applicable.

	Participation of individuals other than Directors
	8.14 Staff and advisors may speak on a matter only if recognized by the Presiding Director.
	8.15 Members of the public in attendance at a meeting may speak on a matter if invited to do so by the Presiding Director.


	PART 9 –  POINTS OF ORDER
	9.1 A Director may raise a Point of Order at any time, whereupon the Presiding Director must:
	(a) interrupt the matter currently under consideration;
	(b) ask the Director to state the substance of and the basis for the Point of Order; and
	(c) decide the matter and state the reasons for the decision.

	9.2 A Director who is dissatisfied with a decision of the Presiding Director under section 9.1 may appeal the decision, in which case
	(a) the Director is permitted to state the basis for the appeal;
	(b) the Presiding Director may make a response;
	(c) the Presiding Director must then ask whether his or her decision is to be sustained;
	(d) the question is to be voted on without debate; and
	(e) the Presiding Director’s decision is sustained unless there is a majority vote in the negative.


	PART 10 –  VOTING
	10.1 When debate on a motion is closed, the Presiding Director must put the motion to a vote.
	10.2 Votes are to be cast by the raising of hands. [Bylaw 7.7]
	10.3 When there is a vote on a motion, no Director may leave the room other than a Director who has declared a conflict of interest.
	10.4 Unless provided otherwise in the Rules, a motion is decided in the affirmative if a majority of the Directors present, excluding those who abstain from voting, vote in the affirmative. [Bylaw 7.7]
	10.5 In the event of an equality of votes, the Presiding Director has a second vote. [Bylaw 7.7]
	10.6 The Presiding Director must declare the result of a vote by stating that the motion is decided in either the affirmative or the negative.

	PART 11 –  REQUEST FOR INFORMATION
	11.1 Directors have the right to request information about any matter before the Board or related to the UNA’s affairs.
	11.2 A Director’s inquiry is to be addressed to the Presiding Director.
	11.3 Inquiries must not include opinion or argument.
	11.4 An inquiry that is not asked in connection with debate on a matter may only be raised as an item under new business.
	11.5 If an inquiry cannot be answered when asked, the CAO must respond, or have someone else respond, at the next regular Board meeting.

	PART 12 –  DELEGATIONS
	12.1 During the open session of a regular Board meeting, an individual or group of individuals (a “Delegation”) may make a presentation to the Board.
	12.2 The maximum amount of time for hearing from Delegations at a Board meeting is 30 minutes.
	12.3 Delegations are to be heard in the order in which they notify the CAO of their intention to make a presentation to the Board, unless the Board decides otherwise.
	12.4 A Delegation’s presentation is limited to 10 minutes.
	12.5 Directors may ask clarification questions of a Delegation, and hear responses to those questions, for a maximum of 5 minutes.
	12.6 Any time limit in this Part may be extended with the consent of the Board.

	PART 13 –  MINUTES
	Preparation of minutes
	13.1 Separate minutes are to be prepared for the open, closed and restricted closed sessions of a Board meeting.
	13.2 Minutes of an open, closed, or restricted closed session of a Board meeting must contain:
	(a) the type of session;
	(b) the date and location of the meeting;
	(c) the times at which the session began and adjourned;
	(d) the names of Directors, staff, and invited attendees who attended the session;
	(e) the name of the Presiding Director;
	(f) a record of decisions made on all main motions; and
	(g) the names of any Directors who have declared conflicts of interest and the matter with respect to which each conflict was declared.

	13.3 The minutes of restricted closed sessions are to be prepared by a Director appointed by the Board for that purpose.

	Approval, distribution, and retention of minutes
	13.4 A draft of the minutes of an open, closed, or restricted closed session of a Board meeting must be provided to Directors for approval and included with the agenda for the next session of that type.
	13.5 Within 14 days of the Board approving the minutes of an open session of a Board meeting, the CAO must post the minutes on the UNA website.
	13.6 The approved minutes of the closed session of a Board meeting are to be maintained confidentially by the CAO.
	13.7 The approved minutes of a restricted closed session of a Board meeting are to be distributed to all Directors, who must maintain the confidentially of the minutes.

	Inclusion of resolutions approved without meeting
	13.8 A resolution approved in accordance with Bylaw 7.9 (resolution approved without meeting) must be included with the minutes of the next open, closed, or restricted closed meeting of the Board, depending on the type of session at which the resoluti...


	PART 14 –  UBC AND AMS PARTICIPANTS
	14.1 With respect to an individual appointed by UBC who is entitled pursuant to sections 8.1 to 8.5 of the Bylaws to attend and participate in Board meetings, the Rules apply as if the individual were a Director, except that
	(a) the individual has no right to make motions;
	(b) the individual has no right to vote on any matter, including for greater certainty any procedural matter; and
	(c) to the extent that sections 8.1 to 8.5 of the Bylaws are inconsistent with the Rules, those sections prevail.

	14.2 With respect to an individual appointed by the Alma Mater Society of the University of British Columbia who is entitled pursuant to section 4.6 of the Neighbours’ Agreement 2020 to attend and participate in Board meetings, the Rules apply as if t...
	(a) the individual has no right to vote on any matter, including for greater certainty any procedural matter; and
	(b) to the extent that section 4.6 of the Neighbours’ Agreement 2020 is inconsistent with the Rules, that section prevails.


	PART 15 –  COMMITTEES
	Establishment and membership of committees
	15.1 Subject to any delegation of its power to establish committees, only the Board may establish committees and determine their membership.
	15.2 Individuals who are not Directors may be members of a committee.
	15.3 The chair of each committee must be a Director.
	15.4 A Director who is a member of a committee ceases to be a member upon ceasing to be a Director unless otherwise provided in the appointment of the Director to the committee.

	Rules of procedure
	15.5 Board committees are to conduct business in accordance with the Rules, with such modifications as are necessary.
	15.6 The quorum for a committee meeting is a majority of the committee’s members.
	15.7 A motion made at a committee meeting is not required to be seconded.
	15.8 In the event of an equality of votes on a motion at a committee meeting,
	(a) the chair of the committee does not have a second vote; and
	(b) the motion fails.


	Minutes of meetings
	15.9 The committee must provide minutes of its meetings to the Board.

	Attendance of non-member Directors
	15.10 Directors who are not members of a committee
	(a) may attend committee meetings,
	(b) may participate in discussion only with the approval of a majority of the committee members present, and
	(c) have no vote.


	Priority of committee terms of reference
	15.11 The provisions in this Part are not applicable with respect to a committee to the extent that the provisions conflict with the committee’s terms of reference.




